
 
 
 

Corporate Services Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee 
 

Date: Thursday, 16 April 2009 
Time: 
 

6.00 pm 

Venue: Committee Room 1 - Wallasey Town Hall 

 
 
Contact Officer: Andrew Mossop 
Tel: 0151 691 8501 
e-mail: andrewmossop@wirral.gov.uk 
Website: http://www.wirral.gov.uk 
 

 
AGENDA 
 
CALL-IN OF CABINET MINUTE 407 (19/3/09) - ASSET MANAGEMENT 
UPDATE 
 
 Cabinet minute 407 has been called in by Councillors Hale, Green, 

Anderson, Watt and Rennie, and the call-in is set out in the following 
terms: 
 
“It is a recorded fact that the Wirral Council Conservative Group is the 
largest Group on the Council and that it has pledged publicly that it will 
re-open any libraries, leisure centres, community centres and village 
halls that are closed by the Labour / Liberal Democrat administration 
as a result of the SAR. 
 
We therefore believe that the Council should make provision within this 
policy to ensure that any buildings disposed of as a result of the SAR 
can be taken back into Council ownership or re-utilised by the Council 
for a purpose decided by the Council at a future date.” 
 
The relevant Cabinet minute and report are attached. 
 
 
 

CALL-IN PROCEDURE 
 
1. CHAIR'S OPENING REMARKS  
 

Public Document Pack



2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST / PARTY WHIP  
 
 Members are asked to consider whether they have personal or 

prejudicial interests in connection with any item(s) on this agenda and, 
if so, to declare them and state what they are. 
  
Members are reminded that they should also declare, pursuant to 
paragraph 18 of the Overview and Scrutiny Procedure Rules, whether 
they are subject to a party whip in connection with any item(s) to be 
considered and, if so, to declare it and state the nature of the whipping 
arrangement. 
 

3. EXPLANATION OF THE CALL-IN BY LEAD SIGNATORY  
 
4. EVIDENCE FROM CALL-IN WITNESSES  
 
5. EVIDENCE FROM CABINET MEMBER'S WITNESSES  
 
6. SUMMING UP BY MOVER OF THE CALL-IN  
 
7. SUMMING UP BY CABINET MEMBER  
 
8. COMMITTEE DEBATE  
 
9. COMMITTEE DECISION  
 
 
 



Cabinet – 19 March, 2009 
 
Minute 407 – Asset Management Update 
 
The Director of Law, HR and Asset Management updated Members on the 
implementation of the Office Accommodation Strategy; sought approval of new 
Policies relating to Disposals and Community Asset Transfer; and authorised officers 
to progress Disposals and Community Transfers, in accordance with these policies.  
An addendum was circulated containing further information about the Community 
Fund and recommends how it should be used to support the asset transfer process. 
  
Resolved: - That 
  
(1) the progression of the Office Accommodation Strategy be endorsed; 
  
(2) the new Policies on Disposals and Community Asset Transfer (subject to 
transfers of community centres being offered first to established and viable Joint 
Management Committees) be approved and the Director of Law, HR and Asset 
Management be instructed to progress their objectives; 
  
(3) recommendations (1) and (2) in the addendum to the report in relation to 
applications for use of the Community Fund to support asset transfer be approved as 
set out below: 
  
(a) The Community Fund be used to support community asset transfer by: 
  
meeting costs of essential repairs to make buildings fit for purpose at the time of 
transfer. The nature and cost of such repairs will be determined by the Council’s 
Head of Asset Management as part of the transfer process; and/or contributing 
interim support towards running costs for up to two years where an organisation can 
demonstrate that at the end of that period it will have a sustainable business plan. 
  
(b) A joint application be made to the Fund by the Council and the community group 
to which an asset is being transferred as part of the second stage of the application 
process set out in the Community Asset Transfer Policy. 
  
(4) the Director of Law, HR and Asset Management be nominated as the new 
Council representative on the joint Working Group administering the Community 
Fund, to replace the departing Head of Legal and Member Services. 
  
(5) the Director of Finance works towards amalgamating the existing budgets for 
building complexes into one budget, to become the responsibility of the Director of 
Law, HR and Asset Management. 
 

Agenda Annex

Page 1



Page 2

This page is intentionally left blank



WIRRAL COUNCIL 
 
CABINET - 19 MARCH 2009 
 
REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF LAW, HR AND ASSET MANAGEMENT 
 
ASSET MANAGEMENT UPDATE AND NEW POLICY PROPOSALS 
_________________________________________________________________________ 
 
1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

 

1.1 The purpose of this report is to update Members on the implementation of the Office 
Accommodation Strategy; to seek approval of new Policies relating to Disposals and 
Community Asset Transfer; and to authorise officers to progress Disposals and 
Community Transfers, in accordance with these policies. 

 
2. Background 
 
 Office Accommodation Strategy 
 
2.1 The Council’s Office Accommodation Strategy was appended to the Asset Management 

Plan 2008/11.  It set a target of 10 square metres of space per full time employee and 
set out the various methodologies that would be used to achieve that target and further 
rationalisation of office accommodation. 

 
2.2 The Strategic Asset Review has added urgency to the implementation of this Strategy 

by requiring budgetary savings of £1 million in respect of office accommodation costs 
and a requirement to reduce the Council’s office space by at least 20% by 2011 

 
2.3 Accordingly, the following steps will now be undertaken to accelerate progress: 
 

• A project team will be established to deliver the office change Programme.  
This team will comprise officers from across the Council, in particular, from the 
key resource areas of Asset Management, IT, HR, Finance and Transformation 
and from the service department whose staff will be affected. 

 

• A detailed programme will be developed to deliver the targeted savings. This 
will identify areas of focus for change and buildings to be vacated, plan for staff 
moves and the development of agile working in those areas most suited for it, 
in the early stages of the programme. 

 

• The centralisation of the control and management of administrative 
accommodation and Facilities Management Budgets, as confirmed in the 
Strategic Asset Review, will be implemented. 

 

• A procurement exercise will be undertaken to select space planning experts 
who will design working environments in retained buildings, that will be more 
efficient and will support new ways of working. 

 

• A further procurement exercise will be used to select specialist consultants to 
select a business case for the Council’s future administrative requirements. 

 
 

Page 3



3. New Policies for Disposals and Community Asset Transfer 
 
3.1 In order to deliver the objectives of the Strategic Asset Review, it is necessary for the 

Council to have clear and consistent policies to dispose of surplus assets and to 
transfer community assets. 

 
3.2 The Disposal Policy is attached as Appendix 1.  It outlines a series of principles, which 

the Council has to take into account in order to follow its statutory duty to sell assets at 
best price.  This obligation needs to be balanced against those disposals that are 
undertaken for less than market value using the “well being” provisions, where 
maximisation of social and community benefit is paramount. 

 
3.3 The Community Transfer Policy is attached as Appendix 2.  This Policy is to be used to 

pass over the ownership and control of assets to community based groups.  The Policy 
explains in detail the key principles and bases of transfer, together with the procedures 
that community groups will follow in order to achieve transfer. 

 
3.4 These Policies will enable the Council to progress these asset management issues 

more quickly and efficiently.  They demonstrate the Council’s commitment to take 
forward this important strand of the Strategic Asset Review. 

 
4. Financial implications 
 
4.1 A programme of disposal of surplus assets is currently underway.  However, given the 

current adverse financial conditions affecting the property market, it is difficult to 
estimate the likely capital receipts that may be achieved by sales either by Private 
Treaty or Auction. 

 
4.2 Under the Community Assets Transfer Policy, the Council will need to expend monies 

on essential repairs in respect of some buildings that are to be transferred.  The 
Strategic Asset Review identified funding to help support this transfer process.  
Provisions were identified to allow funding for community centres for up to two years 
whilst the transfer process progresses towards a successful outcome.  Specific three 
month provisions were also made in relation to Eastham and Woodchurch libraries.  In 
addition, community based groups can apply for financial assistance from the 
Community Fund.  This Fund is jointly administered by Wirral Partnership Homes and 
the Council and officers are exploring how best it can be used to support capacity 
building, asset repairs and time-limited financial support whilst local community groups 
become self-sufficient.  Arrangements for financial support will not normally extend 
beyond two years and will usually be on a tapering basis.  

 
4.3 The Strategic Asset Review has committed the Council to achieve savings of £3.1 

million in respect of its current operational property portfolio and to seek an additional 
£1 million annual saving from its expenditure on administrative and municipal buildings. 

 
4.4 A budgetary provision of £1.5 million per year for four years has been included in the 

Capital Programme for ICT works in support of the Strategic Asset Review. 
 
4.5 Under the current arrangements each complex has its own budget in support of 

Facilities Management.  It is proposed that these budgets be consolidated to become 
the responsibility of the Director of Law, HR and Asset Management, in order that 
expenditure on administrative and municipal buildings is undertaken in support of the 
strategic objectives of the Office Accommodation Strategy. 

Page 4



 
5. Staffing implications 
 
5.1 None at this stage.  However, the staff resource implications will be kept under review 

as these Policies and this Strategy is implemented. 
 
 
6. Equal Opportunities implications 
 
6.1 None 
 
7. Community Safety implications 
 
7.1 None 
 
8. Local Agenda 21 implications 
 
8.1 None 
 
9. Planning implications 
 
9.1 Future planning applications for the redevelopment or alternative use of surplus 

property would be subject to policies in the statutory Development Plan, which currently 
comprises of the Wirral Unitary Development Plan (saved September 2007) and the 
North West of England Plan Regional Spatial Strategy to 2021 (September 2008). 

 
10. Anti-poverty implications 
 
10.1 None 
 
11. Human Rights implications 
 
11.1 None 
 
12. Social Inclusion implications 
 
12.1 None 
 
13. Local Member Support implications 
 
13.1 This will be of interest to all Members. 
 
14. Background Papers 
 
14.1 The Strategic Asset Review and the Asset Management Plan. 
 
15. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
15.1 Cabinet endorses the progression of the Office Accommodation Strategy.  
 
15.2 Cabinet approves the new Policies on Disposals and Community Asset Transfer and 

instructs the Director of Law, HR and Asset Management to progress their objectives. 
 

Page 5



15.3 That the Director of Finance works towards amalgamating the existing budgets for 
building complexes into one budget, to become the responsibility of the Director of Law, 
HR and Asset Management. 

 
 
Bill Norman 
Director of Law, HR and Asset Management 

Page 6



WIRRAL COUNCIL 
 
CABINET – 19 MARCH 2009 
 
REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF LAW, HR AND ASSET MANAGEMENT 
 
ASSET MANAGEMENT UPDATE AND NEW POLICY PROPOSALS  
 
ADDENDUM TO REPORT 
 
APPLICATIONS FOR USE OF THE COMMUNITY FUND 
 
 
Purpose 
 
The main report states (at paragraph 4.2) that community based groups may 
apply for financial assistance from the Community Fund and that officers are 
exploring how it can best be used.  This addendum gives further information 
about the Community Fund and recommends how it should be used to 
support the asset transfer process. 
 
Creation and administration of the Community Fund 
 
The Community Fund was established as a consequence of the transfer of 
the Council’s housing stock to Wirral Partnership Homes (WPH) in February 
2005.  A development agreement was entered into which enables WPH to 
reclaim the VAT on certain works in the WPH improvement programme.  
These VAT monies are paid into the Community Fund, as were the balances 
on the Housing Revenue Account, at the time of transfer. 
 
The Fund is administered by a joint Working Group comprising 
representatives from the Council and WPH. 
 
The Community Fund was set up: 
 

• firstly to meet any potential liability claims, then  

• for initiatives around development of social housing, regeneration and 
addressing environmental, crime and training opportunities. It is 
available to support community involvement. 

 
After setting aside £2.5 million for warranty claims and £500,000 per year for 
the Your Wirral scheme, the balance is available for use by the Council and 
WPH.  This balance is essentially split 50:50.  The Council effectively submits 
bids for the money to the joint Working Group, in a similar manner to applying 
for any grant.  
 
The Council’s representatives on the joint Working Group are Councillor 
George Davies, Alan Stennard (Director of Regeneration) and Simon Goacher 
(Head of Legal and Member Services).  As the Head of Legal and Member 
Services is leaving the Council, a replacement representative needs to be 
appointed. 

Page 7



 
Constraints on the use of the Community Fund 
 
Use of the Community Fund must be compatible with the charitable purposes 
of WPH. 
 
The Fund is a limited, one-off (not a recurring) resource.  Therefore, 
applications made to it cannot be used to provide continuing revenue funding 
support to projects.  Applications agreed by the joint Working Group are 
effectively “grant aid”. 
 
Given the nature and purpose of the Fund, it is not available to provide 
replacement funding for services falling within the Council’s mainstream 
service provision. It should be noted that applications will be considered by 
the Fund Working Group who allocate the grant.  The Council cannot 
anticipate the decisions of that Group and therefore cannot guarantee that 
applications will be successful. 
 
 
Recommendations  
 
Given the nature and purpose of the Community Fund and the constraints on 
its use, it is recommended that: 
 
(1) The Community Fund is used to support community asset transfer by: 
 

• meeting costs of essential repairs to make buildings fit for purpose 
at the time of transfer. The nature and cost of such repairs will be 
determined by the Council’s Head of Asset Management as part of 
the transfer process; and/or 

• contributing interim support towards running costs for up to two 
years where an organisation can demonstrate that at the end of that 
period it will have a sustainable business plan. 

 

(2) A joint application is made to the Fund by the Council and the 
community group to which an asset is being transferred as part of the 
second stage of the application process set out in the Community 
Asset Transfer Policy. 

 
(3) Cabinet nominate a new Council representative on the joint Working 

Group administering the Community Fund, to replace the departing 
Head of Legal and Member Services. 

 
 
Bill Norman 
Director of Law, HR and Asset Management 

Page 8



APPENDIX 1 
 

DISPOSAL POLICY 
 
Objective 
 
The objective of this Policy is to set out a consistent and transparent basis to be adopted by  
the Council to identify and dispose of surplus assets. 
 
 
Principles 
 
1. The Council will only retain ownership of land and buildings which are required for any 

of the following: 
 

• service delivery 

• redevelopment or regeneration 

• to deliver the Council’s Strategic Objectives 
 
2. The Council will dispose of all land and property assets which are identified as 

surplus.  Assets that are surplus are defined as follows: 
 

• Those that make no contribution to service delivery, either directly or indirectly 

• Those that generate no income and have no potential for future service delivery or 
community regeneration purposes 

• Those that under-perform in that their revenue return is unsatisfactory compared 
to the capital value of the asset 

 
Statutory Considerations 
 
Section 123 of the Local Government Act 1972 provides that the consideration should not be 
less than that which can reasonably be obtained, with the exception of sales under the  
following. 
 
The General Disposal Consent (England) 2003 provides for the Council to dispose of assets 
at less than market value provided:  

 

• The purpose for which the asset is to be disposed of is likely to contribute to the 
promotion of the economic, social or environmental wellbeing of the Borough 

• The difference between the unrestricted or market value of the asset and the 
consideration for disposal does not exceed £2 million 

 
Implementation and Procedures 
 
Assets declared redundant by a Service Department, or deemed to be under-performing by 
the Head of Asset Management, will be referred to the Corporate Asset Management Group to  
undertake the following option appraisal: 

• Is the asset required by the Council? 

• Is the asset required by any partner organisation? 
 
OR, IF NOT 
 

• Is the asset required by the Community? 
 
 Page 9



 
The results of this option appraisal will determine how the surplus asset is to be sold or  
transferred. 
 
Any asset of interest to the Community will be dealt with in accordance with the Community 
Asset Transfer Policy, normally be way of leasehold transfer.  However, if the criteria under 
that Policy are not met and, at any stage, it appears to the Council that there is little or no 
likelihood of a community based group being able to take over a building, the asset will be 
dealt with in accordance with this Disposal Policy. 
 

 
 

Methods of Disposal 
 
Once an asset has been declared surplus, the Head of Asset Management will decide on the  
most appropriate method of disposal, selecting from one of the following options: 
 
Public Auction 
 
Surplus assets maybe sold at Auction subject to a reserve price previously approved by 
Cabinet.  Once the reserve is reached, the property will be sold to the highest bidder, with 
completion usually within 28 days.  This option demonstrates that the Council has obtained 
best consideration.  
 
Private Treaty 
 
Assets will be marketed with an asking price and offers considered as they are received.  
Most common method employed for the sale of private dwelling houses.  Local Agent may be 
retained, subject to the Council’s procurement rules. 
 
Special Purchaser 
 
Negotiations undertaken with just one ‘special purchaser’.  Examples include sales of land 
adjoining dwelling houses or businesses to provide space for extension or expansion, or the 
sale of ‘ransom’ strips which release the development value of adjoining land. 
 
Development/Building Agreements 
 
Used mainly for in sales to Registered Social Landlords and private developers where the 
consideration is reflected in the type and cost of development that the Council wishes to 
achieve.  The freehold is only transferred on completion of the scheme. 
 
Informal Tender 
 
Sale of property following appropriate advertising seeking informal offers or bids that meet a 
given specification or set of objectives.  Further negotiations in respect of more detailed 
terms with one or more bidders can be undertaken to secure the best deal for the Council. 
 
Lease 
 
The Council may wish to retain the freehold of the asset and grant a lease.  The length of the 
lease and the terms and conditions will reflect the degree of control that the Council wishes 
to retain. 
 
 

Page 10



Approval of Terms 
 
In the case of Public Auction a reserve price will be agreed by the Cabinet or (if delegated) 
the relevant Portfolio Holder in advance.  All other terms for disposal will require Cabinet’s or 
(if delegated) the relevant Portfolio Holder’s approval.  The report will include the reasoning 
behind the choice of the disposal method. 

Page 11



Page 12

This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 2 
 

COMMUNITY ASSET TRANSFER POLICY 
 
Introduction 
 
Wirral Council believes that community asset transfer is fundamentally about giving local 
people and community groups greater control in the future of their area and their community.   
 
If local groups own or manage community buildings – such as community centres or village 
halls – it can help foster a sense of belonging and bring together people from different 
backgrounds.  Community ownership of buildings can also play a part in raising local 
people’s aspirations, in enhancing the local environment and in alleviating poverty. 
 
The Council is committed to working constructively with community groups and local people 
to ensure that community asset transfer in Wirral is successful. 
 
 
Purpose of this policy 
 
1. This policy describes how the Council will work with the community to support the 

successful transfer of Council-owned land and buildings to local people, for the benefit 
of the community. 

 
2. This policy explains what is meant by the term community asset transfer; explains the 

background to how the concept has developed; and sets out how asset transfer will be 
achieved.  This policy provides a clear framework to support the transfer of land and 
buildings from the Council to local people.  Usually this will mean transfer to a formally 
organised group of local people (a ‘community based group’).  Transfer to a 
community based group of local people will maximise the likelihood that the transfer 
will be successful and sustainable in the longer term. 

 
 
What is meant by Community Asset Transfer? 
 
1. The Council owns and manages a wide variety of property ‘assets’: these include 

buildings and land.  
 
2. Asset ‘transfer’ means moving the responsibility for the ownership, management and 

running of assets from the Council to community based groups. 
 
 
The background to Community Asset Transfer 
 
The national context 
 
There is a clear commitment from central government to the transfer of ownership and 
management of public sector land and assets to community organisations. Transfer is 
increasingly seen as a means to achieve a range of key objectives, from promoting civil 
renewal, active citizenship and improving local public services to tackling poverty and 
promoting economic regeneration. 
 
Appendix A to this policy contains further information on a number of sources that 
demonstrate this growing commitment from central government. 
 

Page 13



 
 
The local context 
 
Wirral Council believes that community based groups are key partners in the delivery of 
services and provide a vital link with local people.  We recognise that working in partnership 
with thriving community based groups can help us achieve the outcomes of our Sustainable 
Community Strategy and the Local Area Agreement; and help promote the social, 
environmental and economic well-being of the Borough.  Recently we have been working 
closely with the Development Trust Association to assist us engage constructively with 
community based groups to progress community asset transfer. 
 
The Council endorses the emerging national framework to support community asset transfer. 
It recognises that:  

 

• the way its physical assets are managed can have a very positive impact on the long-
term strength of local communities and the third sector more generally. 

• through asset ownership, community based groups can grow and become more 
secure, gaining access to sources of additional investment that the Council itself may 
not be able to access.  

• successful asset transfer requires a long-term partnership approach between the 
Council and the community based groups that take over the management of an asset. 

 
 
Aims of Community Asset Transfer 

1. The Council’s land and buildings are used for a variety of different social, community and 
public purposes.  For some of these assets community management and ownership 
could deliver benefits to the local community; benefits for the community based group; 
and benefits to the Council and other public sector service providers 

2. Public assets could often be used more frequently and more effectively. Changing 
ownership or management offers opportunities to extend the use of a building or piece 
of land, increasing its social value in relation to the numbers of local people that 
benefit and the range of opportunities it offers.  Community-led ownership offers 
additional opportunities to secure resources within a local area and to empower local 
citizens and communities. 

 
3. Where the Council transfers assets to community based groups it will work to promote 

the greatest public value.  This may include: 
 

• Community empowerment 

• Area-wide benefits 

• Building the capacity of the third sector and encouraging a  sustainable third-
sector 

• Economic development and economic well-being 

• Social enterprise and social well-being 

• Environmental improvements and environmental well-being 

• Improvements to local services 

• Value for money 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 14



Links to other policies 
 
Community asset transfer is one of the mechanisms the Council can use to support the 
delivery of the Sustainable Community Plan and its Corporate Plan.  This policy forms part of 
the Council’s wider policy framework and should also be read in conjunction with 

 

• The Local Development Framework, which guides statutory land use planning within 
the borough 

• The Asset Management Plan, which explains how the Council uses and manages its 
land and buildings, and 

• The Disposals Policy, which explains the Council’s approach to the disposal of assets 
 
 
The framework for asset transfer on Wirral - Key principles 
 
The Council’s policy on community asset transfer is underpinned by the following principles: 
 

• Any proposed asset transfer must promote social, economic or environmental 
wellbeing and/or support the aims and priorities of the Council; 

• We will not guarantee exclusivity’ on a first come first served basis when considering 
asset transfer and will consider other expressions of interest, as appropriate, in 
relation to any proposed asset transfer; 

• We will encourage collaboration between community based groups and the sharing of 
assets to optimise social value and value for money across Wirral; 

• Asset transfers to community based groups will be in exchange for agreement by the 
community based groups to deliver agreed benefits for local people. 

• Opportunities will be explored to extend this approach to asset transfer to other public 
bodies through the Wirral Strategic Partnership and Community Networks. 

 
 
Assets covered by the policy 
 
An asset is land or buildings in the ownership of the Council.  The policy does not specifically 
include or exclude any asset from potential transfer to a community group, allowing each 
case to be considered on its own merits and in the context of the disposal policy.  For 
example, the Council would welcome expressions of interest from community based groups 
in relation to redundant library buildings that will be surplus to the Council’s requirements 
following its recent Strategic Asset Review.  The Council’s Head of Asset Management will 
make recommendations to the Council as whether a property is appropriate for asset 
transfer. 
 
 
Who can apply? 
 
Expressions of interest will be welcomed from Community and Voluntary sector groups.  
Appropriate groups may be area- based, based around particular social groups or have 
some other shared interest.  Ideally, applicants should meet the following criteria: 

 

• They must be community-led, with strong links with the local community.  Local people 
must be able to control the organisation’s decision-making processes;  

• Their primary purpose must be non-commercial and they must have an understanding 
of the activities they wish to deliver; 

 
 
 

Page 15



 

• They must demonstrate good governance by operating through open and accountable 
processes, with clear management and financial systems 

• They must be open to and demonstrate an inclusive approach to members of the 
wider community. 

 
In addition, applicants should either: 
 

• Have the skills and capacity to effectively deliver services and manage the asset to be 
transferred and/or have access to the necessary skills and capacity; OR 

• Be aware of any need to build capacity within their organisation and demonstrate how 
they intend to do this, perhaps by working with the Council or other partners. 

 
The assessment process will require applicants to provide information to enable the Council 
to assess how they satisfy these detailed criteria. 
 
Where applicants have shortcomings in any of these areas the Council may be able to offer 
advice and support to help them prepare for asset transfer. 
 
 
The basis of transfer 
 
1. ‘Transfer’ may take a number of legal forms.  At one extreme, a transfer of the 

‘freehold’ of a property would mean the entire ownership of the building would pass 
from the Council to the community based group.  However, restrictions (called 
‘covenants’) would normally ensure the property remained available to local people to 
use and prevent it being sold for development. 

 
2. At the other end of the spectrum, a ‘licence’ would allow a community based group to 

use a building, but sharing its use with other groups or individuals.  In between these 
extremes, a ‘lease’ will give a community based group the exclusive right to use the 
property for the duration of the lease.  A lease can run for any period - commonly from 
a few months, up to 999 years.  At the end of the lease or licence the building will 
return to Council control. 

 
3. The Council will discuss with community based groups what sort of transfer will be 

most suitable to meet the needs and expectations of the groups and local people.  
Whilst the Council will normally wish to retain the freehold of the property and grant a 
lease to the community based group, we will consider other options if it is in the best 
interest of local people.  For example, funding bodies may have requirements that 
must be met if a community based group is to be eligible to receive grant monies. 

 
4. During the lease period ‘Rent’ may be payable.  During a licence period a ‘fee’ may be 

payable.  Because the Council is committed to making community asset transfer 
successful we will not normally seek any payment from community based groups, 
unless substantial commercial use of buildings generates large profits in excess of the 
running costs of the property.  However, the Council will normally expect community 
based groups to be responsible for the running costs of the building, including repairs, 
maintenance and all insurance. 

 
 
5. The Council is committed to the successful transfer of assets to community based 

groups.  However, we also recognise that running a building is an onerous 
commitment.  We do not want local people to be deterred from engaging in community 
asset transfer because they are apprehensive about the possible risks of transfer.  

Page 16



Therefore the Council will normally be willing to accept a transfer back of a building, 
without any payment or penalty, if the community based group no longer wishes to 
manage the facility.  In these circumstances the building would then normally be sold 
on the open market, unless another community based group expressed an interest in 
its management. 

 
6. In accepting return of an asset the Council will not normally assume any 

responsibilities or liabilities of the community based group.  In addition the Council will 
not normally act as guarantor for a community based group when transferring an 
asset (or subsequently).  

 
7. The Council will share with any interested community based groups all its information 

regarding the condition and operating costs of any asset that may be transferred.  The 
Council may be willing to invest some money towards making the transferring asset 
structurally safe and sound (as set out in Appendix B).  However, community based 
groups will also be expected to satisfy the Council that they are able to maintain the 
building satisfactorily after transfer.  In addition, the level of any Council investment 
will need to be proportionate to the likely future community benefits flowing from the 
transfer of the asset having regard to the current physical condition of the asset and 
its likely economic life.  It should be noted that the Council’s funds are limited; that it 
cannot afford to pay for all repairs; and that community based group will be expected 
to play a fair part in putting the asset into full repair, including undertaking decoration 
and furnishing.   

 
8. The Council will encourage collaboration between community based groups and the 

sharing of assets to optimise social value and value for money across Wirral.  This 
may mean that the Council will refuse to transfer specific assets where alternative 
local premises are reasonable available to community based groups.   

 
9. There may be competing groups interested in the same building.  In such cases the 

Council will expect community based groups to work together and organise 
themselves in such a way that sharing and use of the asset is optimised between 
them.  If a joint approach is not agreed, the Council will balance the merits of the 
different organisations’ proposals and decide to which organisation (if any) the asset 
should be transferred.  Failure of competing interested community based groups to 
collaborate on a joint approach may make it less likely that any acceptable proposal 
for asset transfer will be achievable. 

 
 
How applications are assessed and decisions made 
 
Community based groups applying for asset transfer will need to set out the following: 
 

• Proposals for the use and maintenance of the asset 

• Benefits to the Council, the community based group and the wider/community 

• Capacity of the community based groups to manage (and insure) the asset 

• A robust business plan 

• Type and key terms of transfer sought 

• Capacity building plan – where appropriate - and how this will be delivered 

• Liabilities and how these will be addressed 
 
 
Any application received will be assessed, using the Council’s standard template (to be  
made available on its website) and must show how it demonstrates the following criteria: 
 

Page 17



• A sustainable business plan, including future investment in and maintenance of the 
asset (including a how health and safety responsibilities will be met). 

• The planned outcomes and benefits to result from the asset transfer. 

• A community governance structure (how local people will be involved in decision-
making in relation to the building and its use) 

• Evidence of the capability and skills within the community based group to sustain the 
asset transfer (and/or any capacity/skills  building requirements) 

• Where transfer is requested at less than market value, the benefits to the community 
and/or the Council to justify the subsidised transfer. 

• Sources of finance that asset transfer will release or attract 

• How much space is required and its potential usage 

• How services and activities will be `joined up’ with those of other organisations to 
maximise the efficient use of the asset  

 
Where the community based group is already long-established, evidence of a track record in 
delivering services and/or managing property (if available) should also be provided to the 
Council. 
 
It is accepted that there are a number of risks which may arise from asset transfer.  A non-
exhaustive list of examples is set out below and risk assessment will form part of the overall 
assessment of applications. 
 

• Potential for a negative impact on community cohesion 

• Potential loss of existing community services or facilities 

• Capacity of recipient to deliver promised services/outcomes 

• Control of asset by unrepresentative/extremist minority 

• Transfer contravenes State Aid and procurement rules 

• Conflict with other legal, regulatory constraints 

• Potential for ongoing Council liability 

• Lack of value for money 

• Conflict with other funders 

• Potential unfair advantage for one group over another 
 
The Council is determined that the concept of community asset transfer will be successful in 
Wirral and will provide guidance and support by way of officer time to help applicants through 
the transfer process.  In addition the Council will need to expend monies on essential repairs 
in respect of some buildings that are to be transferred.  The Strategic Asset Review identified 
funding to help support this transfer process.  Provisions were identified to allow funding for 
community centres for up to two years whilst the transfer process progresses towards a 
successful outcome.  Specific three month provisions were also made in relation to Eastham 
and Woodchurch libraries.  In addition, community based groups can apply for financial 
assistance from the Community Fund.  This Fund is jointly administered by Wirral 
Partnership Homes and the Council and officers are exploring how best it can be used to 
support capacity building, asset repairs and time-limited financial support whilst local 
community groups become self-sufficient.  Arrangements for financial support will not 
normally extend beyond two years and will usually be on a tapering basis.  Conversely, if at 
any stage it appears to the Council that there is little or no likelihood of a community based 
group taking over a building, the asset will be considered for disposal in line with the 
Council’s Disposal Policy. 
 
 
 
 

Page 18



The table below summarises the process the Council will follow where it declares an asset 
surplus to its requirements, with key milestones and target timescales.  
 
Applications may, however, be made by community organisations at any time, and there are 
other situations in which an asset transfer may be requested or sought before an asset has 
formally been declared surplus. 
 
 
Illustrative Timetable 
 

Stage Who is responsible Timescale for completion  

Asset declared surplus 
and expressions of 
interest invited for 
transfer  

Wirral Council – Asset 
management Division 

Start of process 

Expression of interest 
submitted  

Interested CBO (s) Initial registration of interest to be made 
within 3 weeks of start of process 
Detailed expression of interest to be 
made within 6 weeks of start of process 

Expression of interest 
appraised 

Wirral Council – 
corporate group 

3 weeks 

Decision to proceed to 
next stage 

Wirral Council – Cabinet 3 weeks 

Detailed business case 
prepared for transfer  
 

CBO 13 weeks 

Appraisal of business 
case by Council 
 

Wirral Council – 
corporate group 

6 weeks 

Decision to proceed with 
transfer 
 

Wirral Council - Cabinet 3 weeks 

Detailed terms agreed 
and transfer completed 
 

Wirral Council – Asset 
Management and Legal 
Divisions 
CBO 

13 weeks 

 
 
Additional Qualifications to the Illustrative Timetable 
 
(1) These timescales run consecutively.  They will be monitored and where insufficient 
progress is made the Council may withdraw from the transfer process and dispose of the 
asset in accordance with its Disposal Policy.  The Council will be prepared to consider 
reasonable requests for extensions of time to facilitate proposals. 
 
(2) Whilst community based groups are expected to take their own advice the Council will 
try to help and support them as appropriate through the application process.  It will make 
appropriate resources available to provide that support and to appraise applications within 
the target timescales.  In return it expects applications for transfer to contain, at each stage, 
sufficient information to enable appraisals to be completed and decisions made. 
 
(3) The Council’s assessment of an asset transfer request and any subsequent decision 
to proceed will take into account the physical condition of the building, the availability of other 
suitable premises from which the proposed activities could take place, support required from 

Page 19



the Council to enable the transfer to proceed and the value for money offered by the 
proposal. 
 
(4) Detailed proformas and guidance set out the information necessary to enable a 
decision to be made. These will be made available on the Council’s website or from its Asset 
Management division. 
 
(5) Where there is little or no likelihood of a community based group taking over a 
building, the asset will normally be considered for disposal in line with the Council’s Disposal 
Policy. 
 

Page 20



 
 
Appendix A 
 
Relevant sources for further reference to the government’s commitment to asset transfer 
include the following: 
 
The 2006 Local Government White Paper confirmed the Government’s intention to increase 
opportunities for community asset ownership and management, and promoted asset transfer 
as part of a local authority’s ‘place-shaping’ role. 
[www.communities.gov.uk/publications/localgovernment/strongprosperous] 
 
In May 2007 the Department for Communities and Local Government (DCLG) published 
“Making Assets Work” the report of an independent review led by Barry Quirk, the Chief 
Executive of Lewisham Council.  The review found that a careful increase in the community’s 
stake in an asset can bring a wide range of additional benefits for the community, the 
organisation receiving the asset and the local authority facilitating the transfer. The benefits 
of community ownership and management can outweigh risks and opportunity costs. 
[www.communities.gov.uk/publications/communites/makingassetswork] 
 
All the Review’s recommendations were accepted by the Government and published a week 
later as an implementation plan in Opening the transfer window: the government’s response 
to the Quirk Review.  
[www.communities.gov.uk/publications/communities/openingtransfer]  
 
The Government’s Empowerment Action Plan published in 2007 includes actions relating to 
the transfer of assets and to a programme of support for community anchors, including the 
availability of funding to support the development of anchors. 
[www.communities.gov.uk/publications/communities/communityempowermentactionplan] 
 
In July 2008 the DCLG’s White Paper “Communities in Control: real people real power” 
confirmed ongoing support for the Quirk review, announced the establishment of a national 
Asset Transfer Unit, extended the Advancing Assets programme by a further year and 
announced a £70m “Communitybuilders” fund. 
[www.communities.gov.uk/publications/communities/communitiesincontrol] 
 
All these publications are available on the websites listed above. 

Page 21



 
 
 
Appendix B 
 
Where an asset transfer proceeds the Council will, subject to the availability of funding and 
the anticipated economic life of the building, carry out outstanding essential repairs to the 
following building elements: 
 
The main structure to include foundations, floors, walls, roofs, guttering and rainwater goods, 
windows, external doors, external physical features such as car parks, paths and gates. 
 
The Council will also assess the condition of the following internal elements of the building: 
 

• The electrical wiring, main fuse board and fire alarm system (if any) 

• The boiler, heating systems, lifts and kitchen equipment 

• The toilets and plumbing 

• DDA compliance and internal decoration 

• Internal doors and woodwork, fixtures and fittings and decoration 
 
The Council will normally seek a fair and reasonable contribution from the applicant to 
address any disrepair of these elements, as part of the transfer process. 

Page 22


	Agenda
	CALL-IN OF CABINET MINUTE 407 (19/3/09) - ASSET MANAGEMENT UPDATE
	AM Update Report
	Addendum to report
	Disposal Policy App1
	Community Asset Transfer Policy App2


